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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

In. our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its loss, total
comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilitics under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the I[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter "

We draw attention to Note 31 of the standalone financial statements, which sets out the Company’s
assessment of financial impact on account of COVID 19 pandemic situation. Based on the assessments,
the management has concluded that the Company will be able to meet all of its obligations as well a
recover the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2022,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
\%ﬁ comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but dees not include the consolidated

financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. '
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*  Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* Inconnection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair

view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows

b and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalonc Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
ervor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinton. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identificd misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

I e’j‘:}. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
Jis}
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March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, no remuneration (except sitting fees) has been paid by the Company to its directors during
the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position

in its standalone financial statements . (Refer Note 33)

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses. (Refer Note 43)

ifi.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and protection fund by the Company. (Refer Note 46)

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.
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2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Chartorsd |4
Accountants

(UDIN 22094468 ATSTST5700)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2022
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Annexure “B” To The Independent Auditor’s Report of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

»

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(1)

(ii)

a)

b)

d)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets 50 to cover.all the items once every two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on the examination of the confirmation received by us from “Vistra ITCL (India)
Limited” (custodian) on behalf of Yes Bank, “Catalyst Trusteeship Limited” (custodian) on
behalf of Aditya Birla Finance Limited, Kotak Mahindra Bank, Axis bank, HDFC Bank and
Induslnd Bank in respect of immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment
whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans and guarantees, are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date except frechold land and building located at
Andheri Mumbai, Gachibowli Hyderabad and Candolim Goa admeasuring 5552.9 sq mt,
4168.41 sqmt and 1.72 acre , respectively whose title deeds are in the name of the Meringue
Hotels Private Limited, Nightingale Hotels Private Limited and Begonia Hotels Private Limited
respectively, erstwhile companies that was merged with the company under Section 230-232
of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of the approval of the National Company Law Tribunal.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable

intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books of account.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned

working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and
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according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements
comprising lease deposit schedule, cash flow mismatch statement and unaudited quarterly
financials filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with
the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

(iii) The Company has made investments in and granted unsecured loans to wholly owned
subsidiaries during the year, in respect of which:

a) The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given below:

Loans (Rs in lacs)

A. Aggregate amount granted /provided during the year to Wholly 6,842.08
owned subsidiaries:
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of Wholly 5,055.17*

owned subsidiaries:

*Includes equity component of loan given to subsidiary as per Ind AS 109 for Rs 839.89 lacs

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, during the year,
made investments in and granted interest free unsecured loans (refer reporting under clauvse (iii)
(a) above and clause (iji)(f) below) to wholly owned subsidiaries covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, which, as explained to us, have been
made for meeting working capital requirements and/or setting up new projects. In respect of
these investments and loans granted, the terms and conditions are, in our opinion, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the Company's interest after considering the purpose for which investments
are made and loans have been granted. '

¢} The Company has granted loans to wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to Rs 6,242.08 lacs
which are repayable on demand. During the year the Company has not demanded such loan.
Having regard to the fact that the repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been
demanded by the Company, in our opinion the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of
interest are regular. (Refer reporting under clause (iii)(f) below)

In respect of loans converted by the Company amounting to Rs 3,600 lacs which was granted
to one of its wholly owned subsidiary, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
regular as per stipulation. '

d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.
During the year the company has converted Joan repayable on demand given to wholly owned
subsidiary amount to Rs 3,600 facs to long term loans repayable as per stipulated schedule.
(refer clause (iii)(c) above)

f) The Company has granted Loans which are repayable on demand amounting to Rs 6,242.08
lacs during the year, to its to its wholly owned subsidiary. These loans constitutes 63% of total
loans given by the company.

Yo
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(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of making investments. The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or
provided guarantee under section 185 of Companies Act 2013, As per section 186 (11) read
with schedule VI, provision for section 186 with respect to grant of loans and providing
guarantees would not apply to the Company as the Company is providing infrastructural
facilities,

{(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by the
Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the
appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. We are informed that the duty of Custom
and duty of Excise is not applicable to the company,

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Service tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statute Nature of | Amount Period (FY) to | Forum where
Dues Involved (Rs. | which the | dispute is pending
In lacs)* amount relates

Service Tax Rule, 1994 | Service Tax 69.28 Central Excise and
2011-2012 Service Tax

Appellate Tribunal
Service Tax Rule, 1994 | Service Tax 10.06 Central Excise and
2007-2012 Service Tax

Appellate Tribunal

*Net of Rs.23.10 Lacs paid under protest

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

(ix) a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year,

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority,

¢)  On the overall examination of financial statements of the Company, loans raised during the year
have been utilised for payment of interest, repayment of short term borrowings and meeting
working capital requirements as permitted by respective banks. According to the information
and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has utilised funds from internal

Chariered
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accruals for investing and granting loans to its wholly owned subsidiaries. (refer reporting under
clause (iii) above)

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, been used for funding on losses incurred during the year.

¢) On overall examination of financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
or associates. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
the Company has utilised funds from internal accruals for investing and/or granting leans to its
wholly owned subsidiaries. (refer reporting under clause (iii) above)

f)  The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)a) of the
Order is not
applicable,

b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) a) Tothe best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report. '

¢) Asrepresented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, and according to the explanation given to us, the Com pany is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have beer disclosed in the
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the peried upto September 2021 and the draft of the internal audit reporls where
issued after the balance sheet date covering the period October 2021 to March 2022 for the
period under audit,

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 2,994 lacs during the financial year
covered by our audit and Rs. 5,067 lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The company has incurred Josses during the three immediately preceding financial years and
hence, it is not required to spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act,
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company for
the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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/] Vijay Agarwal
£y Partner
“{Membership No. 094468)

(UDIN: 22094468AJSTST5700)

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 27, 2022

k:

A



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

Annexure “A” TO The Independent Auditor’s Report of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
scction of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fi
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Chartered
Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internat financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

%
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made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells L1P
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Vijay Agarwal
Partner

embership No. 094468)
(UDIN: 22094468AJSTST5700)

X

Place: New Deihi

%Datc: May 27,2022



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Standnlone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Note Asal As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
ASSETS
Nou-gurrent assets
(2} Property, plant and equipment 3 1,39,903.45 1,42,812.12
(&) Goadwill 5 0,02 0.03
{c} Intangible assets 5 102.6% 169.25
{d) Intangible assets under development 4 227,91 -
(&) Right to use asset 3 11,377.30 17,013,50
(f) Financial assets 7
{i) Investiments 1,12,187,52 1,04,277,64
(i1) Loans 2,760.11 -
{1i) Other non-current financial assets 886.03 1,083.49
(g} Deferred tax assets (net) 18 - -
(¢h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8 §11.05 592.99
(i) Other non-current assets ¢ 119.60 163.82
2,68,065.68 2,66,142.84
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 324,00 283.63
(b) Financial assets 11
(i) Trade receivables 852.10 1,166,74
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,728.33 572540
{jii) Cther bank balances - 1,368.50
(iv) Loans 1,455.17 3,597.45
{v) Other current financial assets 12,76 87.08
{c) Other current assets 12 _ 1,154.92 1,963.79
5,527.28 14,192.65
Total Assets 2,73,592,90 2,80.335.49
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lauity .
(a) Equity Share capital 13 9,245,52 8,289.77
(b) Other equity 14 1,47,196,68 1,56,336.13
Total Equity 1,36,442,20 1,64,625 90
Liabikities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financis! liabilities
(i) Berrowings 15 94,253.9% 84,700.52
(ii) Lease liability 18 14,145,90 18,528.13
{b) Provisions 17 36,52 33.12
. 1,08,436.41 1,03,261,77
Current liabilitics
() Financial liabilities 19
(i) Borrowings 2.437.10 3,075.26
(ii) Lease liability 93,43 410.54
(jii) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 266.97 141,714
- total outstanding dues of creditors-other than micro enterprises 3,560.88 5,229.63
and small enterprises -
{iv) Other financial liabilities 223,01 2.812.54
(b) Other current lisbtlitics 20 549.60 704.62
(c) Provisions 17 1,583.36 7349
’ 8,714,35 12 447,82
Total Liabilities - 1,17,130.76 1,15,709,59
Total Equity and Liabilitics 2,73,592,96 2,80,335.49
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1to 50

As per our report of even date

For Delpitie Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartﬂ,lr‘\efi /:‘sccnun anti et b
lu k\‘})

j Yijay Agatwal
)@ Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2022

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Flenr Hotels Private Limited

[l 4, ni
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN-00032974 @S
¢ /
(7

Sonali thanda
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Diate : May 27, 2022

Inder.Pdl Batra
Chief Financial Officer




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

ks

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Revenue from operations 21 18,257.09 11,170.14
Other income 22 861.70 778.53
Total Income 19,118.79 11,948.67
Expenses
Cost of food & beverages consumed 23 1,299.31 774.18
Employee benefits expense 24 3,105.33 2,270.90
Power and fuel 25(a) 1,627.05 1,244.50
Stamp duty expenses 25(b) 1,525,03 -
Other expenses 25(c) 5,465.80 3,517.11
Total expenses 13,022.52 7,806.69
Profit before depreciation and amortization, finance cost, finance 6,096.26 4,141.98
income and tax (EBITDA) (Refer note 2.2 (p))
Finance costs 26 9,218.54 9,758.27
Finance income 27 (128.42) (549.25)
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 5,200.85 5.337.19
Loss before tax (8,194.70) {10,404.23)
Tax expense: 29
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - (2.34)
(3) Deferred tax 18 - 26.34
- 24.00

Loss for the year (8,194.70) (10,428.23)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 11.00 3.7
Income tax effect - -

11.00 3.71
Total comprehensive loss for the year (8,183,70) {10,424.52)
Loss per equity share:
{1} Basic 30 (8.38) (11.81)
(2) Diluted 30 (8.38) (11.81)

1to 50

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our repert of even date

For Deloitée Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

voob K
it

Vijay Agarwal
Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date ; May 27, 2022

g

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

e o

e

Inder Pal Batra
Chief Financial Officer

Patanjali G, Keswani
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN-00002974

g
Sonali Manchanda

Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2022




Flewr Hotcls Private Limited

Standalone Siatement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A, Equity Share Caphial

Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at April 1, 2020

Issue of share capital

As at March 31, 2021

Tssue of share capiint (refer note 13)
As 3t March 31, 2022

No. of shaves Amount
Ry in laldis)
8,287,692 6,289,771
8,28,97.692 8,289.77
9557461 98578
9,24,55,153 9,243,52

B. Oiher Equity
For the year exded March 31, 2022
Rs ini lakhs
Reseryves and Surpluy Items of OCI Other Equlty Reserves and Other Equity
companent of | Component- Surplus
Seeurities Prentiun Surplus/{Defick) in the Remeasurement Equity Preference | Cupital Reserve
Statement of Prafit and Loss|  gains/(lasses) on Bhare Account*
defined benefit plansy
Balunce as ¢ April 1, 2020 1,48,601.94 366.84 {1161y 1,450.12 83.58 (1,205.02) 1,49,285.84
O account of Merger( Refer Note No.41) - - - (494.37) 537.63 49437 £37.63
Loss for the year - (10,428.23) - - - - (10,428.23)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - an - - amn
Incrensef(dacrense) during the year 16,937.17 - - 16,9837.17
Balance as at March 31, 2031 1,65,539.11 (10,061.39)| (7.90) 955,75 62121 (710.65) 1,56,336.13
Loss for the year (8,194.70} - " - - (8,194.70)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 11.00 - 1008
On gocouni of Merger( Refer Note No41) - - - (955.75) .- - (955.75)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,65,539.11 (18,256.09) 310 - 621.21 {714.6%) 1,47,196.68

* Refer Nole. No.14

Tite accompanying noles are an inlegral part of the financial statements,

As per our repord of evén date

For Deloitte Hasklns & Sells LLP

Flace : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2022

C{@ered wiagls | \JV)'D
b Aﬁ %*’\J\J

11050

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Flcur Hotels Private Limfted

wPatanjuli G.
Chaitman & Menaging, Direclor

DI

00002974

Sonali Matfchanda
Company Seeretary

g&f}ﬁf/ﬂ/

Inder Pal Batra
Chiel Financinl Officer




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

: Year ended Year ended

l March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

! Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

: A, Cash flow from operating activities

: Loss before tax (8,194.70) (10,404.23)

! Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash Hows:

f Depregiation and amortisation expenses 5,200.85 5,337.19

! Unwinding of discount on security deposits (1,236.31) (784.10)

; Finance income (including fair velue change in financial instruments) (128.42) (549.25)

: Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 9,107.02 9,682.77

; Provision for doubtful debts and advances - 100,00

' Gain on Termination of Lease (323.67) -

; Provision for gratuity 11,21 12,02
Provision for leave encashment (11.98) 0.79

; Excess provision/ credit balances written back ' (79.15) -

: Lease rental waiver : (393.77) ' (716.93)

Operating profit before working capital changes: 3,951.08 2,678.26
Movements in working capital;
Decreae/(Increase) in trade receivables 393,79 665,08
(Increase) in loans and advances and other current assets 2,160.46 320,50
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 40.37) 792
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities and provisions 1,195.82 (156.32)
Cash Gengerated from Operations . 7,660.78 3,515.44
Direct tax refunds(Net of Payments} 21.94 150.58
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 7,682.72 3,666,02

B. Cash flows nsed in investing activities
Purchase of prop‘erty, pIa.nf and equipment {adjustment of CWIP, capital (4,043.20) (2,264.30)
advances and capital creditors)
Purchase of investment in subsidiary companies (6,999.99) (9.477.84)
Short term loans {(given)repaid (to)/by subsidiaries (1,457.72) : 3,859.39
Other bank balances 1,368.50 (1,368.50)
Net gair/ {loss) on sale of current investments 0.01 .40
Interest received 128.41 548.85
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (11,003.99) {8,702.00)
T Cash flows from financing activities )

Payment of Lease liability (1,553.42) (784.10)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 13,210.65 1,643.52
Repayment of long term borrowings . (5,210.78) (1,550.74)
Proceeds/(repayment) from short term borrowings 36,76 (2,829.29)
Proceeds from issue of Complusory Convertible Preference Shares - 17,474.80
Triterest paid (7,159.07) (4,723.30)
Net Cash (used in)/flow from financing activities (C) (675.86) 0,231,89

b

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

Ior the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31,2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in {akhs
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B+ C) (3,997.13) 4,195.91
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 5,7258.46 1,529.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 1,728.33 5,725,406
Compouents of ¢ish and cash equivalents (refer note 11)
Cash on Hand ) 18.51 15.90
Balances with Scheduled Banks in
- Current accounts 1,379.82 940,56
-~ Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 330,00 4,769.00
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,728,33 5,725.46
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 110 50
As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Flenr Hotels Private Limited

B~ I ?

A

Vijay Agarwal Pitanjali™G. IKeswant Inder Pal Batra
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN-D0002974

Sonali Manchanda

Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi Plage : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2022 Date ; May 27, 2022

5




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

1.

2.1

2.2

(a)

Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private corhpany domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-
110037,

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of develeping, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand
name of Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier, Red Fox Hotel and Aurika.

The financial statements are approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on May 27, 2022,

Basis of preparation
Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 ("the Act") (to the extent notified) The Ind
AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 35 below)

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard required a change to
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus nen-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cwrrent/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when if is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a hability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

(b)

A liability is current when:

¢ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting perlod or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Lability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primnary economtic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates
the actual rate at the date of the {ransaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on seftlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCT or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

()

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date except to
certain instruments which are measured at Amortized cost/ historic cost.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as & whole:

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

o Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and
inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to coniracts and other
relevant documents.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022
The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes,
e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 31)
» Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 35)
» Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 35)

G Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from the business of carrying developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand of
Lemon Tree Premier, Lemon Tree Hotel, Red Fox Hotel and Aurika.

The Company apply Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”™ which establishes
a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
inInd AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers
generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as distinet
performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the
revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence
of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criferia to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent, The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition eriteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Value added tax (VAT)/Goods and Service Tax(GST) is not received by the Company on its
own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf

‘of the government, Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized as
and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Value Added Taxes (VAT) /Goods
and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed as at the year-end
is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

(e)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of VAT/Goods and
Service Tax(GST).

Interest income

For all financial instraments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is
included in finance income in the income statement,

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed and variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered. Variable
income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Taxes

Taxes comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period/year. Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and foss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantwe]y
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from ot
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amouat are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in’
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respeci to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferved tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach method on temporary differences

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except;

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controiled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacied or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfving the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change, Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

Value added taxes/goods and service tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added taxes/goods and setvice
tax paid, except: .

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

) Property, plant and equipment{including capital werk in progress)

Property plant and equipment (PPE) ig stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant
and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Freehold land is not depreciated. Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recogunised in profit or loss as incurted.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 on Straight
Line Method over its economic useful life of PPE as follows:

Property plant and equipment Useful life considered
(SLM)

Building 60 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
Private Vehicles 8 Years

Computers : 3 Years

Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings ' 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditore is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds arc borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised
represents the actual borrowing costs incurred, Where surplus funds are available out of money
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments
is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average
of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the
extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument.
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Leases

The Company assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: :

(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

{2) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset, and -

(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for
the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested
for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the

~ lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that

rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company
adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease
payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a purchase
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. :

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the righi-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these low value leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases
are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

®

)

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be idenfified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash {low projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, ualess an increasing rate can be justified.
In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the assel’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed. '

Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the ocewrrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Retivement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the coniribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme.Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit eredit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier oft
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Lability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss: _
¢ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
* Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the confiributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
coniributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
conitribution payable to the respective trusts

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The company treats leave expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability,
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurvement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

s Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

s Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount ouistanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The difference between the iransaction
amount and amortized cost in case of interest free loan to subsidiaries based on the expected
repayment period is considered as ‘deemed investment on account of interest free loan to
subsidiaries’ (Refer Note 11(iv)). After initial measurement, such financial assels are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. If there is any change in estimate for payment of loan (provided
that there was no error in original estimate) , difference in carrying amount and repayment has
been adjusted as return on capital by the parent, based on condition/ situation prevailing on that
date. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss,

Debt instrument at FVIOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit & Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to Statement of Profit & Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVIPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed onty if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
*accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L..

Equity investments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate
financial statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)
when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (2) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure: '

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c} Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables:

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original BIR., When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

*  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably,
then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&I. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presenied as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

¢ Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: There are no instruments measured at
FVTOCI,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at faii value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial Habilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, :

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. ‘

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15.
Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether ifs
recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of

its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

If a financial gnarantee is an integral element of debts held by the entity, it is not accounted for
separately.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measnrement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
interest income, finance costs and tax expense.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the vear aitributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all
the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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Common Control business combinations

The Company accounts for business combinations involving entities or businesses under
common control using the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts, The identity of the reserves are
preserved and appear in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which
they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor, The difference, if any, between the
amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash
or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve
Account and is presented separately as Capital Reserve Account.

In terms of the scheme the amalgamation has been accounted for in accordance with the pooling
of Interest Method. As per said scheme, the financial information in the financial statements in
respect of prior period has been restated w.e.f the appointed date as if business combination
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, itrespective of
the actual date of the combination.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

3. Intangible Assets Ry in lakhs

Pargiculars Software Goodwill Total
Gross Carrying Amount (I)
Cost
As at April 1, 2020 342.50 0.08 342.58
Additions - - -
As at March 31, 2021 342.50 0.08 342.58
Additions 5.67 - 5.67
As at March 31, 2022 348.17 0.68 348.25
Accumulated Depreciation (II)
As at April 1, 2020 111.88 0.04 111.92
Amortisation 61.37 0.01 61.38
As at March 31, 2021 173,25 0.03 173.30
Amortisation 72.23 0.01 72.24
As at March 31, 2022 245,48 0.06 245.54
IIL, Net Carrying amount(I-1T)
As at March 31, 2022 102.69 0.02 102.71
As at March 31, 2021 169.25 0.03 169.28

Notes

a) The Intangible assets are valued at cost. The company has not revalued these assets during the year.

6. Right of Use Assets® Ry, In lakhs

Particulars Amount

Gross Carrying Amount (I)
At April 1,2020 19,810.19

Additions : -

At March 31, 2021 19,810.19

Additions -

Disposal 5,395.04

At March 31, 2022 14,415.15

Accumulated Depreciation (II)

At April 1, 2020 1,995.12

Amortisation 801.57

At March 31, 2021 2,796.69

Armortisation 839.30

Disposal 598.14

At March 31, 2022 3,037.85

III, Net Carrying amouni{I-I1)

At March 31, 2022 11,377.30

At March 31, 2021 17,013.50

*refer note 33

Notes:

&) The lease agreement for leasehold properties is registerd in the name of the company.

b) Right to Use assets are valued at cost. The company has not revalued these asscts during the year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

7. Financial assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Ras in lakhs

(i) Investments
Investments at cost
Unquoted equity shares of subsidiary companies at cost
352,677 (Previcus Year: 352,677) equity shares of Celsia Hotels Private Limited of Rs, | 6,973.93 6,973.93
each Tully paid.
38,280,000 {Previous Year; 38,280,000} equity shares of Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited of 3,843.54 3,843.54
Rs. 10 each fully paid.
82,10,000 (Previcus Year; 82,10,000) equity shares of Hyzacinth Hotels Private Limited of Rs, 13,245.53 13,245.53
1 each fully paid.*
17,68,94,9G0 (Previous Year: 14,14,34,000) equity shares of Iora Hotels Private Limited of 34,923.10 27.923.11
Rs, 1 each fully paid.
250,000 {Previous Year: 250,000) equity shares of Ophrys Hotels Private Limited of Rs, 1 2.50 2.50
each fully paid. '
54,551,616 (Previous Year: 54,551,616) equity shares of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited of 49,511.32 49,511.32
Rs. 10 each fully paid.* ] :
131,110 (Previous Year : 131,110} equity shares of Bandhav Resorts Private Limited of Rs. 2,603.27 2,603.27
100 each fully paid.
Investment in Limited Liabiliy Partnership (at cost}
Tovestmesti in Mezereon Hotels LLP 1.00 1.00
Unquoted equity shares of companies other than subsidiary and associate companies at
fair value through profit and loss '
4,109 (Previous Year: 4,100} equity shares of SEP Energy Private Limited of Rs.10 each 0.41 0.41
fully paid. )
Deemed invesiment (equity portion) on acconnt of interest free loan to subsidiaries
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited 839.89 -
Celsia Hotels Private Limited 7.47 747
Tnovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited 47.42 47.42
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited . 52,90 52,90
Tora Hotels Private Limited 63.47 63.47
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited 177 1.77

1,12,117.52 1,04.277.64
Current - -
Non-Current 1,12,117.52 1,04.277.64

1,12,117.52 1,04,277.64

*The above investment in subsidiaries are pledged as security against borrowings.

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lalhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Loans
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans to subsidiaries at amertized cost (refer note 11(iv) and note 34} 2,760,11 -
2,760.11 -
As at Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs R in lakhs
(i) Other non-cuurent financial assets
Security Deposits {unsecured, considered good) 898,03 593.50
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 295.90 335,13
Fixed Deposits under lien* 154,36 154,86
1,348.2% 1,083.49
Less Provision for doubtfuil assets ' (462.26) -
886,03 1,083.49

* Fixed deposits under lien includes deposits lien marked with banks against guarantees issued in favour of various Government
departments.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

8. Non-Current tax assets (net)

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 571.05 592.99
Total 371.05 592.99
9. Other non-current assets
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Unsecured considered good
Capital Advances 79.90 159.29
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 34.53 34.53
Prepaid expenses ' 517 -
Total 119.60 193.82

{This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

10. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
March 31, 2022 31-Mar-21
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 52.10 52.04
Liquor and wine 64.08 66.69
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others (valued at cost) 2{7.82 164.90
Total 324.00 283.63

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Flenr Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

11, Kinancial assets

As st Asat
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Rs fn lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Trade receivables*#
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good - -
Unseoured, constdered good $52.10 1,166.74
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk i 150,58 216.58
Teodal R 1,002.68 1,383.32
Impairment Allowance (provision for expected credit loss)
Unsecured, considered good " .
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 150,58 216.58

150.58 216.58
Total 852,19 1,166,74
Trade receivables 852.10 1,166,74
*read with note 34

852.10 1,166.74

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor eny trade or other receivable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a directer or a member. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on
 teems of 30 to 90 days from the date of invoice,

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days from the date of invoice.

{This space has been inferiionally left blank}
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Fieur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standaleae financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs tn lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
On current accounts 1,379.82 840,56
Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 330.00 4,769.00
Cash on hand 18,51 15.50
172833 572546
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Ras in lakhg
(ii1) Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months
- 1,368.50
- 1,368 50
As at ‘As af,
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ry in lalkhs Rs in Jakhs
(iv) Loans*#
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advance to subsidiaries 1,455,17 - 3,597.45
*read with note 34 1,455.17 3,597.45
# Disclosure of loans or advances given by the company in the nature of loans granted to reloted parties, R in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Amount of loan % of total Loans

A,
or ndvance in the and Advances in Amount of lean or % of total Loans and

nature of loan

the noture of

advance in the nature
of [oan outstanding

Advances in the
nature of loans

Type of Borrower outstanding loans
Lozn to Related parties {Subsidiaries) 2,828.03 100% 3,597.45 100%
‘Total 2,829.03 3,597.45
{v) Other current financial assets Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 12.76 87.08
1276 87.08
12, Other cuerrent nssets
As At As At
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advances recoverable
-Others, considerad good 277.24 844 80
Unbilled revenue - 3870
Balance with statutory/ govertmment authorities 592.44 791.00
Tnterest accrued on fixed deposits 2.58 2.46
Prepaid expenses 282.66 286.83
Fotal 1,154.92 1,963.79




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financiaf stat

is for the year ended March 31, 2022

13. Equity Share capital

Authorised Equity Share Capital Equity shares
{Equity shares of Rs 10 each)

No. of shares Rs in lakhs
Ag at April 1,2020 12,13,00,000 12,130.00
Increase during the year* 1,45,50,000 1,455.00
As at Mareh 31, 2021 13,58,50,000 13,585,00
Inorease/{decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 13,58,50,000 13,585.00

Authorised Preference Share Capital

Preference Shares
{Face Value of Rs. 100 each)

Preference Shares
{Face Yalue of Rs, 10 each)

No. of shares Rs in lakhs No. of shares Rs in lakhs
Ag at April 1, 2020 10,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00
Increase/(decrease) during the vear - - . - -
As at March 31, 2021 10,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,08,000 1,140.00
Increage/(decrease) during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 10,00,000 1,000,00 1,14,00,000 1,140,000

- {a) Shares held by Holding company

* Duiring the pravious year, Authorised Equity Share Capital has been increased consequent to amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited with Nightiangle Hotels Private
Limited with Fleur Hotels Private Limited.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote pet share. In the event of liguidation

of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in preportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Iasued equity capital®

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Rs in lakhs
As at April 1,2020 ’ 8,28,97,692 8,289.77
Increase/(decreasa) during the year - . -

Asg at March 31, 2021 8,28,97,692 8,285.77
Increase during the vear* 95.57,461 955.75
As at March 31,2022 9,24,55,153 9,245,52

*During the year, Company has issued 95,57,461 shares on non cash consideration to the shareholders of Begonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightiangle Hotels Private
Limited pursuant to merger.

As at As At
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares Rs in lakhs No. of shares Rs in lukhs
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 4,94,94 240 494942 4,33,11,609 4,331.16
(b) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Asat As At
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Name of the sharcholder No. of shares % held No, of ghares Yo held
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 4,94,94 240 53.53% 4,33,11,609 52.25%
APG Strategic Real Estate Pool NV 3,79,91,385 41.09% 3,46,16,555 41.76%
Dandelion Hotels Private Limited 49,69,528 5.38% 45,69,528 5.59%

{c) Aggregate number of bonus share issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought bacl during the period of five years immediately
preceding the reporting date

Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares No. of shares

(i) Equity shares atlotied as fully paid, pursuant to amalgamations (Refer note 41) 2,18,22,900 1,22,65,439

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Iotels Private Limited
Notes to standaloie fi ial stat ta for the year ended March 31,2022

14, Other equity
Secarities Premium

As at April 1, 2020
Inerease/(decrease) during the year
Less: Share Issue Expenses

As at March 31,2021
Increase/{decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2022

Preference Share Capital-equity component

As at April 1, 2020 .

Inerease/(decrense) during the year (Refer Note 42)
As at Mareh 31,2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at March 31, 2022

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss

As at April 1, 2020
Logs for the year

As ot March 31,2021
Loss for the year

As at March 31, 2022

Other comprehensive income

As at April 1, 2020
Increase during the year
As nt March 31, 2021
Increase during the year
As at March 31, 2022

Capital Reserve Account

As at April 1, 2020

Increase/(decrease) during the year (refer note 41)
As at Mareh 31, 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

As at March 31, 2022

Other component of Equity

Ad af April 1, 2020

Increase/(decrease) during the year (refer note 41)
As at Mareh 31, 2021

Increase/(decreasc) during the year*

As at March 31,2022

*During the year, Company has issued 95,57,461 shares to the sharsholders of Bagonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightngale Hotels Private Limited pursuant to merger, Refer

Rsin lakhs

1,48,601,94
16,962.35
2518
1,65,539.11

1,65,539.11

83.58
537.63
621.21

621,21

_Rs in nkhs

366.84

(10,428 23)

(10,061,39)

(8,194.7¢
(85

Rs in lakbs
(11.61)
371
(7.90)

11.00
3.10

Rs In lakhs
(1,205,02)

45437
(710.65)

(710.65)

Rs in lakhs

1,450.12

note 4].
As al As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Other reserves

Preference Share Capital-equity component 621,21 621.21

Securities Premium 1,65,539,11 1,65,539.11

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss {18,256.09) (10,061,39)
. Other comprehensive income 3,10 (7.50)

Capital Reserve Account ( refer note 45) (710,65) (710.65)

Other component of Equity “ 035,75

‘Tatal 1,47,196.68 1,56.336.13

Securitics premium; Securilies premium comprises premium received on issue of shares,

Surplug in the Statement of Profit and Loss: Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss represents balances of profit and loss at each period/year end.

Other comprehensive income: Other comprehensive income represents aceumulated balances of Remeasurement (Iosses)/gaing on defined benefit plans.

Capitzl Reserve Aecount: Capital resreve acoount is recorded as differonce between share capital issued and the amount of share capital

Preference Share Capital-equity component: represents component of equity of 5% reedemable non eummulative Preference share Captial (fransforred on merger of

Meringue Hotels Private Limited).

of the transferor.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standal fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2022

15, Financial Liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2022 tarch 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Borrowings

Non-current borrowings

Term Loans

Loans from Banks (Secured)

Yes Bank Limited (Refor note 3 & 4 below) 3492170 35,471.12
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 and 2 below) 8,032,74 5,944,44
Indusind Bank Limited ( Refer Note 5 below) 4,949,93 5,059.31
Axis Bank Limited( Refer Note 6 below) 23,909.97 15,340.66
Hdfc Bank Limited (Refer ¢ & 10 below) 19,769.96 5,733.50
Vehicle loans (Refer note 11 below) 81.52 131.50
Loans from financial institutions

Aditya Bitla Finance Limited ( Refer Note 7 and 8 below) 11,588.17 13,019.99
Fotal non-current berrowings 94,253.99 84.700.52
Current maturity of loans from Banks (secured)

Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 3 & 4 below) - 285.44
Indusind Bank Limited { Refer Note 5 below) 112.50 75.00
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 and 2 below) - 207.58
Hdfc Bank Limited (Refer 9 & 10 below) - 31233
Vehicle loans (Refer note 11 below) 49,80 50.01
Axis Bank Limited( Refer Note 6 below) 242,17 149.02
Current maturity of loans 404.47 1,079.38
Less: Amount clubbed mnder “Short term borrowings”(refer note 19(i) (404.47) {1,079.38)

Net current borrowings . R




Fleur Elotels I’

ate Limited

Notes to standalone fuunclal statements fur the vear ended March 31,2022

Faotn

tes fo Note 15 "Borrowings"

R in fokhs

Note

Lenider

Amount Suneiloned

Carrying caie of]
Interest as al March 31,
2022,

Caxrylng rate of Interest]
8s nt March 31, 2021

Repaymenir Modification of terms

Hecurity! Prinelpol terms and eandlijans

Koaisk Mahiadra Bank Limited

6,000,080

7,709

7.83%|

Tho loan is repayable in 48 guarterdy installments starting from

34th amouth follawing the month of first disbwrsenignt,

The loan 1s secured by
- First and exaivsive chorge an ol existing and future vurrent asscts, movable and immovabls fixed assels of the
lotel - Rod Fax Soolor - 6, Gurgooy,

- Subserviant charge o alt existing and falure cugrent asscls of the Borrawor oxcopt current asseta of the hotel -
Red Fox Soctot - 60, Gurgach,

- Equitable Morigago by way of exelusi
Min; nssef oover 1,2x to he

charge on the land and building of Red Fox Hota] Seelor60, Qurgaon,
d throughout the feor of bank loan 05 per valuation sesented by bank.

2 | Kolak Mahitdra Bonk

2,400.00

7.35%|

‘Tho loan is repayable in 48 manfhily insiellments starting from
ofter 24 mouth of moratariup.

Thhe lodn i3 socured by socond chacge oi
- on all existing and future urrond assets, miovabla ad imniovable fines! aesels of the hotol - Ted Fox Sceier - 60,
Gurgoeu,
- Subservient alierge on all axiating aad fture sumont asteta of e Bormower oxcopt cnrrent aveels af the otel -
Red Fex Seotor - 6, Gurgaon.

w

Yos Bank Limited

4,500.00

8.15%

B.10%)

The lom is ropayablo 44 eteuotured quosiesly installmcnt afler o
moraiorium period of 36 months fiem tha dote of first

1113 Boeured by !

#) Exclusivo ehacge o all smmoveablo Bxedt nssels, moveable Ixed asyctr and current assets of Lomon treo Sactor
60 Gurgron, and covention eeplre within Hlotwl premises of 20,000 st {nppox.).

b} Esceaw of all recsivables of the project inelnding seoirity deposits,

) Carparate guarantes of Lemon Tree Tiatela Limited,

d) DSRA equivalent fo three months interest and onc quanier principal fo be croated in casc of any over ducs
beyond 30 duys i the form of fixed denosiis duly fion marked in fivour of YBE,

* Mittinirm veelrity cover of |55 on immoveable ond moveable fixed nssels of (he project.

-

Vos Bank Limited

20,300.00

B.10%,|

B.60%

The lown |s ropayable in 52 structwred querierdy insiallments post
marelorium period of 36 months from the date of frst
dlsbwmoment.

it is seonred by
4] Firyt charge on oll presont md fatwre movable & immeveablo fixed nssets of the prejeci. Lemon Tree Premier

-|atel, Kolkatn, Lonon Fras Promier Hotal in Puts, Lemot Tree Hotol iy seotsr 68 Gurgaon uod approximetoly

20,000 sqfl convention cantre Ihe hotel premises,

b) Escrow of ol oceivables of the hotats including sseurity deposits (i any).

e} Corporate gunranieo of Lemon 'Treo Hutels Limited,

d} DSRA equivalont 1o 3 mouthis hiterest end 1 qtarter prinsiple o be crosted in case of any over dues beyan 30
days in the form of lixed deposiis duly fion marked in fayaur of YOL.

5| Yes Bank Limited

12,500.00

B 15%,

8.10%

Tho loon is repiayable 60 atwetured gqoutierly inslallment afler o
moralorium periad of 60 menths fom the date of fist
disbursamont,

This secursd by:
0} Equitable morgage over 80% shers of Land and butllding {execpt 2nd basenient, ground door aud first flaor) an
peri passu bosis with ether leners for the project, Lemon Trea Pronuier Hotel, Andliarl Muombei,

b) First ohnrge (or pari passit busis) o her movable fised assete and all current assets, bath preseit ard faiurs of
ihe project, Lemen Tree Premicr Hotal, Andhori Mumbal,

0) Corperit gheraniee of Lemnen Tree Hotels Limited.

ES

Indusind Bank: Limitod

5,000,650

B.23%

8.55%

Teaor of 16 years with doar door tenor Faciity shall nat exceod
153 oiiths Froes the dote of Grst disbursement, including
moraterium pried of nil mondis.

W s sseured hy;

) First ohurge oo al prescant and filura immovonblo assats of tha hotel " Lemon Tros Amarante: Benck Rosorl (A
Capdoling, Goea),

) Tirat cliarge on all mcvesble fixed assats (both prosent 6ud fture) (lnshuding Ysoraw acount oponcd with 1BLY
@l thc hate] ™ Lomon Tra Amoranis Beach Resort (At Caudaliny, Goa)', i

) Exelusive chorge on book delits, oper: cash flows, erodit oned receivables, eewnminsions, rovenuos of
whuteocver netur end wharavar arising, prasent and fiture throuph Eserow reshinisi of toh Hotel "Laman Troo
Amaranic Bagch Resort (Al Candolin, Goa),

) Bseroww of all ansh flows of Lemou Tres Aneante Beash Resort, Gou fneluding seeatity deposits.

~

Axis Brnk Limiled

16,060,06

7.83%

790

'Tenoe of 18 yeurs and 9 months including construction period of
1.5 yvenrs and morutorlun pariod 02,5 yoors with ropoyiments in
witk 60 quarlerly unequal installmonts.

1t 15 sepured by
2) Exelusive charge by way of [ over the land & building at Tot o1, Khasra No. 878 to 951, Kelorolii,
Tidalpur, (sdmessuring 26390.3 sq, yarda ar 237513 sq. £,

) Extchartve eharge over the niosanblo fixed assots af the Udaipur Hotel, both presea and A,

o} Tielunive ehiargo by way of hypolbecation of ull tha ousrent assets of Ddaipur Hotel,

d) Gxclusive charge by way ofiypofheaation of all the susbflasws of Udaipur Hotel,

Corporate Gunrantoo of Lorian Treo Hatels. FAGI of 1.50x shall be maintained at all bmes. Any adgitionai
cotlnteral scaurity othor ihen Giose mentioned hatein above offored by the borrwer 10 othor tondors (in usc of pari
prssu ehargo) shall also bo available fo bunk.

-

Asgs Bank Limited

477000

1.35%

Tho loan is copnyablo in 48 mamly insullments alsr a period of 2
years of Morator/um,

1tis sccurcg. by second charod-
(0] EM ovor land & building sitated ut Plot na.], Khasr 272 to 981, Kalerahi, Sisramn, Udalpor (maasuring
26,394 35q).

(b Othar moveablo fixed assots of the Uduipur 1oteds bath present end fiduce,

(e Y Hypotlicontion of afl the cusrenit assets of Udsipur Hotel,

£d) Hy pothasation: of ol the cashllews ol Uduipur Totel,

(e} Equitble mortpage over 80% shate of Tund & building uxespl for 2nd tusement, ground Docr and 1st fJaor
{1otal lond eres admensuring 5552.90 sy.mir.) located of Aucdher] Kurls Road, Mumbei, Maharashites

{£) Other moveable xed assets of the Kirly project, Soth prosent qnd faare,

(z) Hypotheention of gl the current assels ol the Kurla Poject,

(1) 100% oradit graruntes by NCGTC,

-

Axis Bonk Limited

9,500.00

E.15%

“The Lomn s repuyable i 60 quarterly mstaluents after 2
srataritm period of § years.

T ia seonred by
a) Tignitable mortgago over 80% sharo of Land and building fevcept 2ud bustment, gronnd Doar and first foor) on
ard passut bois witiathor londars for tho praject, Laman Trea Beariar Hotel, Anadhor, Mumbai,

) Firet chorge {on paci possu busis) on ther movabln fixed nssets and all current assety, hoth prosent ané fiturs of
the projec, Lenion Treo Mromier Hotel, Andheri Muabai.

) Corporniv gunsanice of Loraat Trea Hatels Linsited.

18 | Aditya Birla

11,500.00

11 |Adirya Birlo Fingreo Limited

4,000.00

8.50%

B.H0%)

Tetur of 12 years vilh repayament in 48 strustared quariary
tastalfonet, Repayment of ferm loen § 41 lna with existing londer
repayment sliedule. The facility hava lock-in totior of 1 year from
the date of firs disburzmont.

T i sueured by

4) First cxslusive chorge by way of Morlgape! Hypatheootion on the imtovable sl movable Gxed assots {bath .
prescat and futuro) of Lomon Treo Promier Hotel Hitee City, Hyderabod, te previde nrinhmum cover of 1.25% ot oll
1imes during 16e tonor of e Jootl,

b} First exeivaive charge on the aurrent assets of' the Leun Trew Premier Iotel, Hiteo City Hydembad,

©} Firat exclusive charga an projeots bauk aceonat ineluding bit ot Hinited to Fsecow aceowt whore eatiro cash
flow of Lomon Treo Premier Hotel, Hiter City, tyderubad shall be deposited,

d) Unconditianal and ltvavecable Corporale Guurentes of T 4mon Tree Hotels Limited,

©) Demand Fromissory Nole (DPH),

12 |HDFC Benk Limited

100550

7.50%4)

7.50%%

WCTL is repayable i 48 cqual moullly instalments afier 1 yaor
of maoraterjum,

It is secured by second chnrge over caisting primory and eollotoral seouzities including worlgages ercated in fwour
of the bunk at Lemon Tree Hotel Gachibowll, Hyderabad.

13 |HDFC Boaak Livited

LO00.Ga

7.30%

The prineipat shall be rapaid in 48 mothly mstalents aiter
camnpletion of mornorien of 2 yedr,

10 is posured by sccond charge over exdsting primary and callatera! securities including morignges Gronted in Favour
ofthe bank and seenrity cranted over the Assets of 1he tomower porghused ol ol his fellity. (Loman Pree Liotel
Guochibowli. Hyderabady

100% Credit Guueamee by National Credit Gituremtee Trast Company Limited.

14 [HDEC Bank Limited

£,000.00

7.90%|

BAO%

The T.uan iy repayable iv 48 Structured Quarterly lnswlimenty

T wecared tiy:

o) First and orclnisivoch bl and i bl
Hyderabad,

b) Firat nnd exclusive chorge an eserow uecomnt of enlirs cush Rows of the Lemon Troe Hotol Gachitiai,
Hydarabad,

o) Carporats guarmlee of Lemen Tree flotels Lintes,

ixed nusels sl the Leman Trec Hotal Gachibowll,

TIDFC Bank: Limitcd

5,200.00

725%

The princlpal shall be repaid jn 48 monthly instnimons afier
completion of morntorium 682 year,

It ks secured by:

{a) 1002 Credlit Guarenice by Nations] Credil Guaranice Trast Compeuny Limited.

(12} Exterintion of wesond cauking charge over existing primary and collatesal see ding morlgages croslcd
in favor of tho bunk: and security created ovor 1o Bssots of tho borrower purchased out of this fucility i Lemon
Tree Holel Gashibowll, Hyderabad

=

Veluele Joan {difTeremt bunks}

These leans are repoid on agiced monthly instablments,

Vohicto loa is seaured by hypothocation o Underlyitg motr veliicle soqwired oul of suek Joans from HOFC Hank
Liited and s Bank Limited,

{i) The Company has not defaulted i the repayment of boans uad inkerest &3 of Balance Shcot dato.
(i} Tank louns wvailed by tie Company are subicc! to eutlain covennurts ralating to interest eoverage ratli, debl serviet coveruge rtio, enpital gearing ratio, Gxed ausels coverape ratio,

(#i} Tie Companry has camplied’ takon waivar for thoe covenans i
(v} The campany has wed borrowi

i bk und fipeneind institetions os per the lerma.of the loan agreement.

for the speeific pucpose of warking capital sequiredrent and/or setting new projects, Conrpany Is willzed fandk fram its imfenal secrmals for mkitg invostnent in subsidiary! foan 1o sobsidiary,

() Bacis on severs] ferms and sonditiens w1 specified in sunetion lellors, tho compnny subrits guarterly retums/siatements comprising of loasc doposit schiedoles | ansh flow mismate]) sitements and wnaudited quarialy stalements with banks! Gaanelal instifulion snd these refurnséstatomsnts are in BpresiEnt
with the books el uecaunts,




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

16.Lease linhilities

As at Asgat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhg Rs in lakhs
Balance at beginning of the year 18,938.67 18,252.77
Less: Deletion during the year 4,555.31 -
Interest acerued during the year (refer note 26) 1,803.16 1,776.39
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 1,947.1%9 1,050,4%
Balance at end of the year 14,239,34 18,938.67
Current 93.43 410,54
Non-Current 14,145,90 18,528.13
17, Provisions
As at Ag at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for gratuity (vefer note 32) 45.43 4522
Current 8.91 12.10
Non-gurrent 36.52 3312
As at Ag at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lukhs
Provision for leave benefits 49,42 61.3%
Current 49,42 61,35
Non-~current - -
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in takhs
Provision for stamp duty (refer note 47) 1,525,03 -
Curvent 1,525,03 -
Nen-current
Total current 1,583.36 73.49
36,52 33.12

Total non-current

{This space has been intentionally left blank}




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

18. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 7,897.75 8,108.32
Revaluation of land 393.99 393.99
Deferred tax liabilities 8,291.74 8,502.31
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 40.00 29.25
current/ earlier period but allowable fur tax purposes on payment basis
Right to use asset/lease liability 1,146.99 894.62
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 41.98 88.16
MAT credit entitlement 948.97 948.97
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses carried forward 5,023.73 5,435.96
Interest on loan uw/s 43B 1,019.26 1,043.13
Gratuity 12.04 12.58
Non moving inventory 0.26 0.96
Leave compensation 13.75 17.08
Security deposits 43.46 31.57
Deferred tax assets 8,291.74 8,502.31
0,00 0.00

Deferred tax Assets/Liahilities (net)*

* Deferred tax asset for the current year has been restricted on losses and credits has been recognized to the extent of

Deferred tax liability.

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting proﬁt multlphed by India’s domestic tax rate for

March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Loss before tax

Tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate

Effect of incomes taxable at nil/lower rate

Effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ required to tax under Income
tax charge/ (credit) in respect of earlier year

Unrecognized tax assets (net)

Net

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

(8,183.70) (10,400.52)
27.82% 27.82%
(2,276.71) (2,893.43)
- 0.42

- 0.28

- 24.00
2,276.71 2,892.73
- 24.00




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

19. Financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Short term borrowings
Loan from Related Party : 417.70 466.50
Cash credit from banks (Secured) * ‘ - 1,614,93 1,529.38
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 15} 404.47 1,079.38

2,437.10 3,075.26

*The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries intetest rate of 8,15% to 9.15%% p.a.(March 31,
2021: 8.05% to 9.65% p.a.) and is secured by way of;

a)Exclusive charge on all movable assets and current assets of Lemon Tree Hotel Kolkata and Lemon Tree Premier Pune and

by First charge on all present & future immovable fixed assets(80% portion of undivided part of land) of the Lemon Tree
Premier Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai ‘

c)First charge on all present & firture movable fixed assets and current assets of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri kurla Road,
Mumbai :

d) Corporate Guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

(iii) Trade Payables*# As at © Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
-Micro and small enterprises 266.97 141.74
~-Other than Miero and small enferprises 3,560.88 5,229.63
*read with note 34
Total 3,827.85 5,371.37
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Trade payables 2,059.98 504.11
Trade payables to related parties (Holding company) 1,767.87 4,867.26
3,827.85 537137

(This space has been intentionaily lefi blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalene financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iv} Other financial liabilities Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in Iakhs Rs in lakhs

Security Deposits ) 46.44 46.44
‘ Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 132.75 91,15
| Book overdraft 43.82 166.58
: Payable for capital goods ] - 2,508.37

Total . 223.01 2,812,54

20. Other current liabilities

As at Asgat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance from customers 284.00 544.54
Statutory dues (Provident fund, GST, TDS and other statory dues) 265.60 160.08
Total 549,60 704.62

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2022

21. Revenue From operations

1 Year ended Year ended
' March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
| Rs, in lakhs Rs, in lakhs
|
! Reyenue from operations
: Sale of produets and services ‘
- Room rental 14,219.11 8,996.57
= Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine) 2,522.89 1,422.91
- Liquor and wine 244.20 100,89
- Banquet rentals 115.98 29,94
- Telephone and telex 0.37 6,70
- Other Services (including service charge income) 1,154.54 619.13
Revenue from operations 18,257.09 11,170.14
22, Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Rent received 11,58 10.87
Provision no longer retjuired written back 79.15 -
Waiver of rent* 393.77 716,93
Gain on Termination of Lease
Less: related provisions 323.67 -
Miscellaneous income 53.53 50.73
Total 861,70 778.53

¥ During the year, consequential to COVID 19 pandemic, the Group has requested and received rent waiver/concessions from
certain landlords and accordingly recognized an amount of Rs. 393.77 lakhs (March 31, 2021: 716,93 Iakhs), in Statement of
Profit and Loss as “Other Income”, by applying practical expedient given in Para 46A and Para 46B of Ind AS 116 (as amended).

23, Cost of food & beverages ¢ d
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. in lakhs Ras, in lakhs
(a) Consumption of food & beverages excluding liquor & wine
inventory at the beginning of the year 52.04 81.00
Add: Purchases 1,231.81 716.41
1,283,87 791.41
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 52.10 52.04
Cost of food and beverage consumed 1,231.77 745,37
{b) Consumption of liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year 66,69 62.44
Add: Purchases G4.92 33.06
131.61 95,50
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 64.08 66,69
Clost of liquor and wine consumed 67.52 28.81
Tatal (a+b}) 1,299.31 774,18
24. Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2027
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Sataries, wages and bonus 2,692.69 1,982.25
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 184.07 159.01
Gratuity expense (refer note 32} 11.90 13.19
Staff welfare expenses 216,66 116,45
Total 3,115.33 2,270.90

(This space has been infentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

25(a). Power and fuel

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Power and fuef 1,627.05 1,244.50
Total 1,627.05 1,244.50
25(b). Stamp duty expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. in Inkhs Rs, in fakhs
Stamp duty expense 1,525,03 -
Total 1,525.03 -
25{c). Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Rs. int lakhs Rs. In Jakhs
Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 259.19 177.88
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses 281.53 116.30
Guest transportation 42.59 4574
Spa expenses 47.69 3.69
Subscription charges 53.42 359.86
Repair and mmainienance
- Buildings 109.67 22.06
- Plant and machinery 295,66 200.38
- Others 225,02 101.16
Rent {refer note 33) 95,71 109,92
Rates and taxes 840,89 601.66
Insurance 103.88 73,87
Communication costs 85,53 84.16
Printing and stationery 54.34 35,53
Traveling and conveyance 10.61 1.36
Vehicle running and maintenance 33.05 25.39
Advertisement and business promotion 577.67 363.52
Management fee paid 1,016.00 555.39
Commission -other than sole selling agent 848.44 529.10
Security and cleaning expenses 172,96 135.10
Membership and subscriptions 504 11.54
Legal and professional fees 18713 114.41
Suridry Balances written off 3,35 -
Donation - 1.00
Provision for doubtful debts and advances - 100,00
Payment 1o auditors* 35.00 35.00
Miscellaneous expenses 81.43 27.09
Total 5,465.80 3,517.11
*Payment to auditor {excluding Goods and service tax)
For statutory audit 26.00 26.00
For tax audit 1.00 1.00
Other services 8.00 8.00
35.00 35.00

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

26. Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. in lakhg Rs. in lakhs
Interest
- on term loans from banks 6,151.30 6,633.28
- on foans from others 1,138.08 1,254.85
- on vehicle loans 14.48 18.24
- on lease liability ( refer note 16) 1,803.16 1,776.39
Bank charges {inclhuding comimission on credit card collection} 111.52 75.51
Total 9,218.54 9,758.27
27. Finance income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Interest Income on :
-Bank Deposits 96.26 344,54
-Others 32.15 204.31
Profit on sale of current investment 0.01 0.40
Total 128.42 549.28
28, Depreciation and amorfization expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ra. in lalihs Rs, in lakhs
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note no. 3) 4,289.31 4,474.24
Depreciation on Right to use asset ( refer note 6 & 33) 839,30 801.57
Amertization on intangible assets {refer note no, 5} 72.24 61.38
Total 5,200.85 5,337.19
29, Tax expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Adjustment of tax relating te earlier periods - (2.34)
Deferred tax ’ M 26.34
Total - 24.00

34, Earnings Per Sharc (Basic EPS And Diluted EST)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the vear attributabie 10 equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amoumis are calculated by dividing the loss attributable fo equity holders of the Company (afier adjusting for interest
en the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the vear plus the
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all ihe dilutive potential Equity shares into

Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Loss attributable to equity holders {Tor basic and dilated)

Weighted average munber of equity Shares (for basic and diluted eamings per

share)*
Basic and Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2022

March 31, 2021

(8,I54.70)

9,78,31,493
(8.38)

{10,428.23)

8,82,74,032
(11.81)

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during
the year. There have been no other transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and

the date of authorisation of these financial statements,

(This space has been infentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

31. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities and other commitments. Uncertainty about these judgements,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assurnptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Estimation of Uncertainties related to global health pandemic on COVID-19

COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and continues to impact major economic and financial markets
around the world. Regular business operations in many countries, have been severely disrupted due to
lockdown, travel bans, quarantines and other emergency measures. With respect to operations of the
Company it has impacted its business by way of reduction in occupancy of hotels and average realization
rate per room starting from the month of March 2020 and management has undertaken various cost
savings initiatives to conserve cash. Management believes that the easing of lockdown in India including
flight operations and expected increase in business travel would be beneficial for the Company.

In evaluating the impact of COVID-19 on its ability to continue as a going concern and the possible
impact on its financial position, the management has assessed the impact of macro-economic conditions
on its business and the carrying value of its major assets comprising of Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE), Right-of-use (ROU) assels trade receivables and investments in subsidiaries (investments) as at
the balance sheet date. In this regard, the Management has carefully considered the circumstances and
risk exposures arising from the COVID-19 situation for developing estimates on the basis of all available
information in jts assessment of impact thereof on its financial reporting.

While assessing the recoverable amount of PPE, ROU asset and investments, the Company has used
significant assumptions such as hotel occupancy rates, average room rate per hotel, terminal growth rate
and weighted average cost of capital, The Company appointed independent valuer to assess fair values
of significant hotel properties owned independently, which covered approximately 78% of value of PPE
of the Company. Specifically for investments, the Management has considered (i) the industry in which
the investee entity operates (ii) The geographic location of the investee entity (iii) The size of the investee
entity (iv) the quantitative significance of the investee entity (v} liquidity risk premiums (vi)
appropriateness of valuation techniques and inputs used including current market assessment of credit
risk and liquidity risk and (vii} other factors specific to the investee entity. For assessing the recoverable
amount of trade receivables, the Company has calculated the expected credit loss from the trade
receivables considering amount to be realized from them in future after factoring the impact on credit
risk due to COVID-19,

Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that the Company will continue as a going concern
and will be able to meet all of its obligations as well as recover the carrying amount of its aforesaid assets
as on March 31, 2022,

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from
COVID- 19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements. The associated economic impact
of the pandemic is highly dependent on variables that are difficult to predict. The impact assessment of
COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and
actual results may differ materially from these estimates. The Company will continue to monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes would be
recognized in the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise,




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
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Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
a. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Company assesses
the carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the tecoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins,
growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as

follows:

Particulars As at March 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 11.70% - 13% 12.00%
Long Term Growth Rate - 5.00% 5.00%

As at March 31, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and
the change in estlmated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-19
is unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

b. Impairment of Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The Company assesses the carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries and associates to determine
whether there is any indication that those investments have suffered an impairment loss. Where the
carrying amount of investments exceed its recoverable amount, the investment is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant assumptions such as such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth
rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows:

Particulars . As at March 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 11.70% - 13.5% 12.00%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

As at March 31, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of the investments exceeded its carrying amount
and the change in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-
19 is unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the investments,

¢. Leases

The Company has taken certain land and building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Company;

is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate g =
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Compan
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of IND AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires judgment. The Company uses judgement in assessing the lease term and
the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022 '

d. Loss Allowance on trade receivables (Expected credit loss)

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the
Company’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered the
likelihood of consequential default considering emerging sitnations due to COVID-19 and has taken into
account estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19, Basis this assessment, the
allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2022 is considered adequate.




Fleur Hotels Privéte Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

32. Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at
retirement age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which
consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is
responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy. The
Trost Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred fo the insurer.
The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of
actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.

Rs, in lokhs

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Gratuity plan 45.43 4522

Total 45.43 45,22
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as
follows:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ungquoted investments;
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%

Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate: % %

Pension plan ‘ 6.10% 5.60%

Future salary increases:

Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%

Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
- Pension plan

Male 60 60

TFemale 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2022 2022 2022 2022
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit -

(1.94) 2.08 2.08 (1.98)

obligation
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Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022 '

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 is as shown below:

- Rs. in lakhs
; March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2021 2021 2021 2021
Assumptions ' Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit 504 219 518 507
obligation (2.04) ' ’ 2.07)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in fiuture years:

Rs. in lakhs
Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 13.93 12.63
2 11.66 12.63
3 10.95 9.81
4 8.91 8.77
5 7.04 7.11
Above 5 23.45 18.08
Total expected payments 75.94 69.03

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2021; 3.67 years).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

33. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating leases on hotel buildings, with lease terms between twenty three,
twenty five, twenty eight and twenty nine years. Refer Note No.6 for carrying value of right to use asset
recognised and Refer Note No.16 for carrying value of lease liability and the movement during the vear,

The weighted average of incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.72% (March 31, 2021:
0.72%)

b. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
At March 31, 2022, the Company had commitments of Rs. 82.47 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: Nil)
c. Contingent liabilities
(i) Legal claim contingency

Rs. in lakhs
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

a.  |Service Tax 92.38 02.38

The Company’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Service tax authorities.
The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse
effect on its financial statements.

(ii) For financials guarantee given to baoks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities availed by
its group companies refer note 33(d).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022 '

(ii) Pledge of shares

(a) Pledge of 51% of the sharcholding held in Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term
loan facility availed by Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited. Amount of Loan outstanding as on March
31, 2022 of Rs. 14,342.45 lakhs However, during the year, 30% shareholding is pledged and against
21% shareholding, Hen has been created in favour of Trustee on the basis of Non-disposable
undertaking.

{(b) Pledge of 30% of sharcholding held in Berggruen Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term
loan availed by Berggruen Hotels Private Limited from Yes Bank Limited and pledge of 15,435,000
shares held in Berggruen Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term loan availed by Berggruen
Hotels Private Limited from Tourism Finance Corporation of India Lid. Amount of Loan outstanding
as on March 31, 2022 is Rs. 7,351.44 lakhs. However, during the year pledge of 15,45,000 shares held
by company in Berggruen Hotels Private Limited were released.

(d)

Financial guarantees

The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities
availed by its group companies for construction of new hotel project. In accordance with the policy of the
Company (refer note 2.2(n) the Company has designated such guarantees as ‘Insurance Contracts’. The
Company has classified financial guarantees as contingent liabilities. These financial guarantees are an

- integral element of debts held by entities, hence has not been accounted for separately. Accordingly, there
are no assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet under these contracts. Refer below for details
of the financial guarantees issued:

Rs. in lakhs
Loan Guarantees Loan Guarantees
Outstanding as on Outstanding as on
ason March | March 31, | as on March | March 31,
31,2022 2022 31,2021 2021
a. {Counter guarantees issued in respect of - 792.06 - 873.61
guarantees issued by company’s bankers
b. |Guarantee given on behalf of Hyacinth 14,342.45 16,105.00 14,593.80 16,105.00
Hotels Private Limited '
¢. |Guarantee given on behalf of Celsia 4,760.77 5,972.00 4,593.21 5,972.00
Hotels Private Limited
d. |Guarantee given on behalf of Inovoa 3,783.19 3,481.00 3,628.75 3,481.00
Hotels & Resorts Limited
e. |Guarantee given on behalf of Berggruen|  7,351.44 18,606.00 9,484.89 18,600.00
Hotels Private Limited




Fleur Hotels Private Limited _
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022 :

(¢) Note on Provident Fund:

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, Company is not required {o create provisions
in books of accounts in view of the judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of Vivekananda
Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I[), West Bengal and subsequent
dismissal of review petition by Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of review petition No. 001972-
001973/2019 in civil appeal 3965-3966 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd Vs Employees Provident Fund
and Another.

Considering the equitable cause, the High Courts may give prospective effect to the judgement which can
be done in exercise of inherent powers of High Court under Article 226 of the constitution of India.

In case of Company retrospective effect is remote and at present uniformity is maintained across all
brands/grades, ' '
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022

34, Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Holding company

Subsidiary company

Fellow subsidiary companies

Limited Liability Partnership

Key Management Personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding company has
Significant Influence

- Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Celsia Hotels Private Limited

- Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
- lora Hotels Private Limited

- Ophrys Hotels Private Limited

- Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
- Bandhav Resorts Private Limited
-Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

- Canary Hotels Private Limited

- Hamstede Living Private Limited(w.e.f March 31,
2021) _

- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited

- Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

- Mezereon Hotels LLP

- Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Chairman & Managing
Director)

-Mr. Rattan Keswani(Director) (Upto March 31, 2022)

- Mr. Dominic James Doran (Director)

- Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf (Director) (resigned w.e.f May

29, 2020)

- Mr. Paramartha Saikia { Independent Director)

~ Mr, Ashish Kumar Guha (Independent Director)

-Mr. Niten Malhan (Independent Director)(w.e.f

November 6, 2020)

-Mr, Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya (Independent

Director)

- Mr. Pradeep Mathur (Independent Director)

- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

-Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited
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Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during
the year:

Chief Financial Officer _ : Mr. Inder Pal Batra
Company Secretary " : Ms. Pooja Arora { resigned w.e.f. May 25,2020)
: Ms. Sonali Manchanda ( w.e.f. May 29,2020)
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2022

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year

Rs in lakhs
Key .
Management E::;:lr‘f;lsss
Persom.lel significantly Enterp'rlse in
(Managing influenced which
Transactions with Related Holding P Fellow Director, Whole Holding
Year ended Subsidiaries PR . . by key
Party Company subsidiaries time director, management company has
manager and personnel or s.ignificant
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives
Reimbursement of
expenses paid on
behalf of party
Iqra _Hotels Private 31 Mara2 - ) - . -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 4.80 - - - -
5.76 - - - -
L?mpn Tree Hotels 31-Mar-22 )
Limited
31-Mar-21 - - " - - -
Berggruen Hotels - - - - - -
. . . 31-Mar-22
Private Limited
31-Mar-21 - 29.71 - : - -
Reimbursement of
expenses incurred on
company’s behalf
L'eln'on Tree Hotels 3L Mar.23 - - - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 491 - - - - -
Loans (given)
CfalS}a Hotels Private $1-Mar.23
Limited - 10.00 - - - .
31-Mar-21 - 183.70 - - - -
H‘yafnnth Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 - $.85 - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 379.00 - - - -
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Key .
Enterprises
M}ilﬂﬂgemelnt owned or Enterprise in
Ntlarsonr.le significantly ! l? b
Transactions with Related Holdin Fello 1)-( tor. ol | imfluenced Holdin
ansactions Year ended £ Subsidiaries ‘? . w' 1.rectm:, ole by key 8
Party Company subsidiaries time director, management company has
manager anq personnel or s_igniﬁcant
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives
Iora Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 " 5,187.14 ) ; - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 7,453.00 - = " -
Bfll](flhav Resorts Private 31-Mar.22 - 4.03 - - - -
Limited ,
31-Mar-21 - 18.00 " ~ - - -
- 4,554,.23 - - - -
Be:rggruep Hotels 31-Mar-22 ,
Private Limited
31-Mar-21 - 340.00 - - - .
In‘ov'oa Hotels & Resorts 3-Mar-22 - .83 - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 20.00 " - - -
Repayment of Loan
Given
Cfals_la Hotels Private A1-Mar-22 - - - - -
Limited 50.00
31-Mar-21 - 143,70 - - - -
Hyag:mth Hotels Private 31-Mar22 - 885 - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 608.98 - - - "
Tora Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 ) 7,002.14 " ; ) -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 10,919.80 - - - -
i - 0.03 - . . ;
B.anc.:lhav Resorts Private 31-Mar-22
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 505.00 - - - -
- 1,254.43 - - - -
Berggruen Hotels 31-Mar-22 ,

Private Limited
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Key .
Management E;:;rg]“;:s o
Personnel oo Enterprise in
M . significantly hicl
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow Difec:‘oﬁa%ll%ole influenced H“;I{;Tnl
P Year ended Subsidiaries e . . by key £
arty Company subsidiaries time director, management | 0MPany has
manager and g significant
. personnel or .
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives
31-Mar-21 - 57.00 - - - -
- 68.91 - - - -
In.ov_oa Hotels & Resorts 31-Mar-22
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 20.00 - R - N
Loans (taken)
Man-akm Resor}s Private $1-Mar-22 - - - - -
Limited 58.80
31-Mar-21 - - ] - . -
Repayment of Loan
taken ]
Lc‘am‘on Tree Hotels $1-Mar22 - - - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 2,788.00 - - - - -
i i - - 16.00 - -
Man.akm Resorts Prwate_ 31-Mar-22
| Limited -
31-Mar-21 - - 835 - - -
Management Fees paid
{Gross))
L'emvon Tree Hotels 31-Mar22 - - - - -
Limited 1,563.09
31-Mar-21 890.34 - - - - -
Training expenscs paid
(Gross)
: T :
Mn}d Lt?aders Learning 31-Mar-22 ) ) _ ) ]
India Private Limited #3.08
31-Mar-21 - - - - - 59.10

Remuneration Paid
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Key .
Enterprises
Mlimagemelnt owned or Enterprise i
Nirsom?e significantly ¢ E,' ’he m
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow Diiec?oria%;li;gole influenced H‘;l:!?ng
P Year ended Subsidiaries e \ N by key
arty Company subsidiaries time director, management company has
‘ manager and. personnel or s.ignificant
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives
Mr. Inder Pal Batra 31-Mar-22 - - . 38.74 - -
31-Mar-21 - - - 24.60 - b
Ms. Pooja Arora 31-Mar-22 - - . - - -
31-Mar-21 - - - 0.82 - -
Mrs. Sonali Manchanda 31-Mar-22 - - - 15.35 - -
31-Mar-21 - - - 10.33 - -
Subscription to Share
Capital
B_ancﬂlhav Resorts Private 1-Mar-22 ) i ) ) ) )
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 455.46 - - - -
Io_ra 'Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 - 6,999.99 - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 10,015.12 - - - -
Purchase of Goeods &
Services
Lf:m.on Tree Hotels 31-Mar-33 i - - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 0.07 - - - - -
Director Sitting Fees
Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha | 31-Mar-22 - - - 113 - -
31-Mar-21 - - - 1.60 - -
Mr. Paramartha Saikia 31-Mar-22 - - - 1.00 - -
31-Mar-21 - - - 1.50 - -
Mr. Pradeep Mathur 31-Mar-22 - - - 0.75 - .
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Key .
Enterprises
1\/[;’“]agemmlﬂt owned or Enterprise in
Nirsom,w significantly l? h
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow Dir(ee:ol;ag\;\l;hgole influenced Holdin
P Year ended Subsidiaries oW recier, by key £
arty Company subsidiaries time director, management company has
manager am% personnel or s‘igniﬁcant
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives

31-Mar-21 - - - 1.40 - -
Mr. Niten Malthan 31-Mar-22 - - - 1.15 - -

31-Mar-21 - - - 0.35 - .
Advance given to the
party
Toucan Real Estates - - - - -

. .. 31-Mar-22 148.52

Private Limited

31-Mar-21 - - - - 8.32 "
Guarantees Given for
loan taken by
H;yas;mth Hotels Private 31-Mar22 - 16,105.00 - - - -
I.imited

31-Mar-21 - 16,105.00 - . - -
Celsia Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 ) 5,972.00 ) ) ) )
Limited

31-Mar-21 - 5,972.00 - = B -
In'ov_oa Hotels & Resorts 3 Mar22 - 3.481.00 - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-21 - 3,481.00 - - - "
Berggruen Hotels

A . . 31-Mar-22 18,600.00

Private Limited i

31-Mar-21 18,600.00
Guarantee Taken for
Loan received

85,302.00 - - - - -

Lf:m'on Tree Hotels 11-Mar-22 )
Limited

31-Mar-21 | 835,302.00 - - - - -
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Key .
i Enterprises
lenagemelm - owned or Enterprise in
Mersom'le significantly ﬁ) h
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow Diiec?otag\;ll%ole influenced Hv:;l:;?ing
P Year ended Subsidiaries R . I by key
arty Company subsidiaries time director, management | SPMPALY has
manager and & stgnificant
. personnel or .
other managerial their influence
personnel} relatives
Amonnt Received on
behalf of the Company
Lt.em.on Tree Hotels 11-Mar22 6338 - - - - -
Limited _
31-Mar-21 11.79 - - - - -
i - 0,28 . . .
C.ana.iry Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 i
Limited
31-Mar-21 - - " - " -
' i - 3.16 - - - -
H.yaf:mth Hotels Private 31-Mar-22
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 1.05 - - - -
Interest Received
Iqra 'Hotels Private 3-Mar22 - i - - - -
Limited )
31-Mar-21 - 158.33 " - " N
Interest Paid{Gross)
i : . - 40.60 - - -
Man.akm Resorts Private $1_Mar.22
Limited
31-Mar-21 . - 45.91 - - -
Amount paid on behalf
of the party
Lemon Tree Hotels 31-Mar22 | 1115 ) ] ) ) i
Limited
31-Mar-21 278.53 - - - - -
H.yagmth Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 - 155 - - - -
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 11.47 - - - -




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial

statements for the year ended March 31,

2022
Key .
Enterprises
Mlilnagemelnt own:i or Enterprise in
I\zrsonr}e significantly l?n lh
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow Di:ec:lol;a%\lf]l%ole influenced I;:;Id?n
P Year ended Subsidiaries . . . by key g
arty Company subsidiaries time director, management | COMPANy has
manager and. persoﬁnel or s.igniﬁcant
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives

C'an'c'lry Hotels Private $1.Mar_22 - - ) - - -
Limited

31-Mar-21 - - 0.73 - - -
Cfels‘la Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 - - - - - .
Limited

31-Mar-21 - 0.03 - - - -
Berggruen Hotels - - - - -

R . . 31-Mar-22 1.34

Private Limited ar

31-Mar-21 - - - - - -
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels ‘ - - - -

. .. 31-Mar-22 -

Private Limited ? 0.51

31-Mar-21 - - : ; : .
e - 0.06 " - -
%lkhsaga_r (;omplexes 31-Mar-22 )
Private Limited

31-Mar-21 - - - - - -
Interest accrued but
not due (Gross)
Iql'a .Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 - 228,06 - - - -
Limited

31-Mar-21 - 13.55 - - - -
Balances outstanding
at the year end- Loans
given
C'els.la Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 - ) - . - -
Limited

31-Mar-21 - (.40 - - - -
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts H-Mar.22 - 5.92 - - - -

Limited

3I-Mar-21
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2022
Key .
Enterprises
Mlimagem elnt own elil or Eoterocise
Nirsoni:le significantly i”'}illl"llse n
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow Diigec:lonra%l;fllfole influenced H‘zlcilfa:
P Year ended Subsidiaries oW rector, by key ‘ &
arty Company subsidiaries time director, manasement | CCWPADY has
manager anq perso;gmel or sligniﬁcant
other managerial their influence
persannel) relatives
Tora Hotels Private 31-Mar-22 ] 1,383.11 ] ) ) ]
Limited
31-Mar-21 - 3,198.11 - - - -
Bgndhav Resorts Private 31-Mar.22 ) ) ) ) )
Limited 21.34
31-Mar-21 - 17.34 - - - .
Berggruen Hotels
. . . 31-Mar-22 - - - - -
Private Limited ar 3,639.80
31-Mar-21 - 340.00 - - - -
Others 31-Mar-22 - - - - .
2.00
31-Mar-21 - - - - -
2.00
Balances outstanding
at the year end- Loans
taken
Magakm Resorts Private 31-Mar-22 ) ) ) ) )
Limited 417.70
31-Mar-21 - - 466.50 - - -
Balances outstanding
at the year end- Trade
Pavable
Trade Payable
szm.on Tree Hotels A1 Mar22 - - . - -
Limited (1,767.87)
31-Mar-21 4,867.26 - - - - -
Mr. Inder Pal Batra 31-Mar-22 - - - - - -
31-Mar-21 - - - (0.83) - "
Mrs. Sonali Manchanda 31-Mar-22 - - - - - -
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2022
Key .
E
Management ;lvt;rgjrlsfs
i:rsonrltel significantly Entilr‘lzl';lﬁe in
Transactions with Related Holding Fellow ])ilsectac::fa gvl‘l’]l%ole influenced Holding
Year ended Subsidiaries P . . by key
Party Company subsidiaries time director, management | COMPany has
manager and persoﬁnel or s_igniﬁcant
other managerial their influence
personnel) relatives
31-Mar-21 - - - 0.13) - -
Mind Leaders Learning - - - - -
. . . . 31-Mar-22 5.39
India Private Limited
31-Mar-21 " - " - - 11,87
Capital Advance
Toucan Real Estate - - - - -
. . . 31-Mar-22 79.90
Private Limited
31-Mar-21 " - - - 159.21 -
Security Deposit
Tqucan Rpa} Estate 31-Mar22
Private Limited 192.00
31-Mar-21 192.00
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest fres and setilement
occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2021: INR Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

35. Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides
additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the
criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument

a.  Financial Assets (other than equity investment/ deemed investment in subsidiaries carried

at cost)
Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - 852.10 - 1,166.74
Security Deposits |- i
{non-current) 398.03 593.50
Other bank ‘
balances(including
Fixed deposits under ) 154.36 i 1,523.36
Lien)
Cash and Cash i
Equivalents B 1,728.33 5,725.46
Interest accrued on -
deposit with banks - 308.66 - 49291
and others
Loans 421528 3,597.45
Total Financial
Assets (other than
equity investment/
deemed investment : 8.156,76 . 13,028.72
in subsidiaries '
carried at cost)

Note: The financial assets above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are measured at cost
in accordance with Ind AS 27. ‘
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b. Financial Liabilities

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial
Liabilities
Borrowings - 96,691.09 - 87,775.78
Trade Payables ) 3,827.85 - 5,371.37
Lease Liabilities - 14,239.33 - 18,938.67
Other Current
Financial 223.01 - 2,812.54
Liabilities )
Total Financial
Liabilities - 114,981.28 - 114,898.36

¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending
on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.
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36 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its
operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Compeny is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported
by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk
governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with
the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest Tate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable
rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

R, In lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Variable rate borrowings 96,559.77 87,594.28
Fixed rate borrowings 131.32 181,50

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that pottion
of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting, With all other variables held constant,
the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Rs. In lakhs

Particulars Increase/decrease in basis points | Effect on profit before tax
March 31, 2022

Floating rate borrowing 50 44735

Floating rate borrowing -50 {447.35)
March 31, 2021

Floating rate borrowing 50 461.79

Floating rate borrowing -50 (461.79)
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Foreign curreney risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 11. The Company does not hold collateral as security,

Trade Receivable As at March 31, 2022 (Rs in lakhs)
Ageing Gross trade receivable Expected credit loss Net receivable
Not due - - -

0-60 days past due 564.18 0.83 563.35
61-120 days past due 95.11 0.52 94,59
121-180 days past due 85.91 1.69 84.22
180-365 days past due 108.86 8.34 100.52
365-730 days past due 18.24 .12 9.12
more than 730 days 130.38 130.08 0.3
TOTAL 1002.68 150.58 852.1
Trade Receivable As at March 31, 2021 (Rs in lakhs)
Ageing Gross trade receivable Expected credit loss Net receivable
Not due - - -
0-60 days past due 594,15 1.25 592.90
61-120 days past due - 117.96 0.89 117.07
121-180 days past due 172.93 4.42 168.51
180-365 days past due 195.5 16.96 178.54
365-730 days past due 142.75 53.84 87.01
more than 730 days 161.03 139.22 21.81
TOTAL 1383.32 216.58 1166.74

Chartzrad
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Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables (including provision for
expected credit loss)

_March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Provision at beginning 21658 116.58
Addition during the vea - 100.00
Reversal during the year 66.00 -
Utilised during the year - -
Provision at closing 150.58 216.58

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Loans and deposits(including provision for
expected credit loss)

)22 | ‘March 31,2021

Provision at beginning - 8.75

Addition during the year - -

Reversal during the year - -
Utilised during the year - 8.75

Provision at closing - -

(b} Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
deparfment in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021 is the carrying amount as given in Note 11,

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration
of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a
sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders. As at March 31, 2022, the company had available Rs. 2,490 lakhs (March 31, 2021:
1,100 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial Kabilities based on

contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Borrowings*
Trade and other
payables

Other Financial
Liabilities

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Borrowingg*®

Trade and other
payables

Other Financial
Liabilities

* represents un-discounted cashflows

Rs. Inlakhs
On demand Less than 3 3o 12 1 to 5 years > § years Total
months months
2,032.63 8.30 396.17 26,851.13 68,287.21 97,575.44
3,827.85 - - - - 3,827.85
223.01 - - - - 223.01
6,083.49 8.30 396.17 26,851.13 68,287.21 101,626.30
1,995.88 50.55 997.79 15,164.81 .70,567.92 88,776.95
5,371.37 - - - - 5,371.37
2,812.54 - - - - 2,812.54
10,179.79 50.55 997.79 15,164.81 70,567.92 96,960.86

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2022
as on undiscounted basis

Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Minimum Lease Payments : _
Not later than one year 1,265.42 1,630.08
Later than one year but not iater than five vears 5,657.68 6,913.17
Later than five years 28,166.94 42,743.11
Total 35,090.04 51,286.96
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37 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equ1ty holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. -

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings (Note 15 and Note 19)

(Net of Processing Fee) _ 96,691.09 87.715.78
Trade payables (Note 19) _ 3,827.85 5,371.37
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 1,728.33 5,725.46
Net debt ' 98,790.61 87,421.69
Total capital 156,442.20 164,625.90
Capital and net debt 255,232.81 252,047.39
Gearing ratio 39% 35%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

38. Amendements/Standards notified but not yet effective

a) Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time.

Ind AS 16-Property Plant and equipment- The amendment clarifies that excess of net
sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in
the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost
of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods begining on o after April 1, 2022, The Company is evaluating
the impact of Ind AS 16 and its effect on the financial statements:=

)l
®
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Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets- The amendment
specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the "costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract can cither be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April
1.2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of Ind
AS 37 and its effect on the financial statements

b) Note on Social Security:

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on social security, 2020 (“the codes”) relating to
employee compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent
have not been notified, Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have
not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the codes when the rules are
notified and will record any related impact in the period in which the Codes become
effective. :

There are no new amendements/standards (other than above) that are notified, but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements.

39. Ratio Analysis and its elements

%
March March Varianc | Reason for
S.No. | Ratio Numerator Dengminator | 2022 2021 3 variance
Decrease due to
Current Current higher collection
! | Ratio Current Asset liabilities 0.63 1.14 (44.37%) | from debtors
Debt ‘
Equity Shareholder
2 | Ratio Total Debt equity 0.62 0.53 15.92% | -
Debt : Decrease in
service Earnings losses as
coverage available for compared to
3 | Ratio debt service Debt service 0.42 0.40 23.53% | previous year
Average
Return on | Net profit after | sharcholders
4 | Equity taxes equity (5.10%) | (6.47%) | (21.15%) | -
Average '
Inventory(excl
i uding Stores, Increase in
Inventory cutlery, revenue has lead
Turnover Cost of goods crockery, to increase
5 | Ratio sold linen) 11.06 7.06 56.65% | inventory levels
Trade Increase in
Receivable revenue has lead
rnover Avg, accounts to increase
6 | Ratio Net total sales | receivable 18.09 7.45 142.76% | average debtors
Trade Not applicable to
Payables the company
turnover Net credit Average Trade considering
7 1 Ratio purchase Payable NA nature of services
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Decrease in
_ working capital
Net capital levels as
Tuarnover Working (189.48 | compared to
8 | Ratio Net Sales capital {5.73) 6.40 %) | previous year
Decrease in
losses as
Net Profit compared to
9 | Ratio Net Profit Net sales (44.89%) | (93.14%) | (51.81%) | previous year
. Decrease in
Return on ' losses as
capital Capital compared 1o
10 | employed EBIT employed 0.35% (0.47%) 174.81% | previous year
: Not applicable to
“the Company
considering the
investments are
made to
Interest( : subsidiaries with
Return on | Finance long term growth
11 | investment | income) Investment NA NA NA | outlook

(i) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation
and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc which
are non cash in nature,

(ii) Debt Service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments (excluding prepayments).

(iii) Capital Employed = Net worth+ Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability - Net Intangible aseets-
Intangible assets under development

(iv) Working Capital= Currmt Assets- Current liabilities
(v) EBIT= Earning before interest and taxes
40. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single
unit, Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind AS 108
— “Operating Segments”,

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as per
the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021.
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41, Business Combination — Pooling of Interest Method

a) Amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the
order of scheme of amalgamation dated March 22, 2021 in respect of amalgamation of Begonia Hotels
Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (the Company) and the scheme was effective from March 31, 2021. The Appointed
date is April 01, 2019.The Company has made allotment of 95,57,461 equity shares to the shareholders
of the Transferor Company on April 20, 2021 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the Scheme. The assets,
liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been taken over at their
catrying values. This transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the pooling of
interest method and maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone
financial statements of the Transferor Company.

Name of the
Company

Principal
Activity

Date of
Acquisition

Proportion of voting
equity interest
acquired

Consideration
transferred

Begonia Hotels
Private Limited

Hotel Business

April 1, 2019

100%

1,46,45,682 shares of
the Begonia Hotels
Private Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelled and 41,25,544
number of shares has
been issued on April 20,
2021 to the shareholders
of Begonia Hotels
Private  Limited for
consideration other than
cagh.

Nightingale
Hotels Private
Limited

Hotel Business

April 1, 2019

100%

13,03,66,000 shares of
the Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelled and 54,31,917 |
number of shares had
been issued as on April
20, 2021 to the
shareholders of
Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited for
consideration other than
cash,
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The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recognized as at April 1, 2019 ave as follows:

Rs. in lakhs

Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited

Begonia Hotels
Private Limited

Assets

Property, plant and equipment(including 1,567.95 9,014.07
intangible assets)

Financilal assets-Non Current | 2,301.10 1,154.56
Other Non-Current Assets 46.02 90.33
Inventories 13.67 2142
Financial assets-Current 793.92 1,202.95
Other Current Assets 75.28 - 56.03
Total Assets 4,797.95 11,539.36
Liabilities

Borrowings 25.64 4,947.42
Other financial liabilities 373.67 570.97
Provisions 5.77 11.56
Other current liabilities 65.87 55.95
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 37.60 -

Total Liabilities 508.54 5,585.89
Other equity 4,142.92 4,649.85
Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private 412.55 543.19
Limited issued as per the swap ratio to

shareholders of the Transferor Company.

Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on April 1, (266.07) 760.43
2019

b) Amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited

During the previous year ended March 31, 2020, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the
order of scheme of amalgamation dated January 21, 2020 in respect of amalgamation of Meringue
Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur Hotels Private Limited {the Company) and
the scheme was effective from January 31, 2020. The Appointed date is April 01, 2019.The Company
had made allotment of 12,265,439 equity shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company on
February 13, 2020 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the Scheme. The assets, liabilities and reserves of
the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 had been taken over at their carrying values. This
transaction had been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the pooling of interest method and
maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone financial statements
of the Transferor Company.
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Proportion of veting

Private Limited

Name of the Principal Date of v v Consideration
e e equity interest
Company Activity Acquisition : transferred
acquired
Meringue Hotels | Hotel Business April 1, 2019 130% 2,152,209 shares of the

Meringue Hotels Private

Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelled and

1,22,65,439 number of
shares had been issued
to the shareholders of
Meringue Hotels for
consideration other than
cash,

The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recognized as at April 1, 2019 are as follows:

Bty

ASets

{Amount in INR Lakhs)

Property, plant and equipment(including

capital work in progress) 32,389.18
Financial assets 1,261.27
Total Assets 33,650.45
Liabilities

Borrowings 19.811.08
Other financial liabilities 4,110,89
Provisions 7.71
Other current liabilities 15.16
Total Liabilities 23,944.84
Other equity 9,684.09
Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private

Limited issued as per the swap ratio to

shareholders of the Transferor Company. 1,226.54
Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on April

1, 2019 1,205.02

42. As on March 31, 2021, company had issued and allotted 53,76,340 Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (“CCPS”) to APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V (“Existing Shareholder”) at an issue price of 2
325.50 per share (including premium of % 315.50 per share) on June 22, 2020 at an aggregate
consideration of % 175 Crores., The Company had also considered impact of this issue while assessment

of going concern at March 2021,

43. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are

any material foreseeable losses.

44. There is no such immovable property whose title deed is not in-the favor of the company.
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45. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006,
Rs. in Lakhs
March3l, | March31,
2022 2021

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any| 266,97 141.74
supplier as at the end of each accounting year
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Nil Nil
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the :
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting vear

i : the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and

i Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

' the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting year; and
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

46. There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

47. During the year, the Company has made provision of estimated stamp duty expense of Rs. 1525,03 Lakhs
on amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited, Begonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightingale
Hotels Private Limited. This provision of stamp duty expense is a one- time expense of non-recurring
nature,

48. During the year, the company had reached an arrangement with the Lessor for termination of lease in
Chandigarh which was subsequently approved by the High Court of Punjab and Haryana on April 18,
2022, Basis this arrangement, lease accounting for the said property has been terminated by derecognizing
Right of Use of Assets, Lease liability and Security deposits. Accordingly gain on termination of lease
for Rs 323.67 Lakhs has been recognized in Other Income (Refer Note 22)
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Other Statutory Information

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(a)

(c)
(ix)

(a)

(b)

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Vittual currency during the
financial year. '

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property under
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

The company do not have any transaction with companies struck off,

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with
ROC beyond the statutory period.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.

During the year, the company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements in terms of
section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, the prescribed disclosures of
Schedule III are not required to be given.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics

The Company have not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uliimate Beneficiaries.
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50.  Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year classification.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Pm@li' G‘:Keéwani Inder Pal Batra

Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN-00002974

,\@&\

Sonali Manchanda
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2022



